
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting, Monday, 9th September, 2019
   at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4)

Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th June, 2019.

5 - 12

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Management of Gas Servicing and Maintenance 
 

13 - 16

(D) 8.  Station View, Holker Street: Extra Care/Sheltered Accommodation 
 

17 - 20

(D) 9.  Survey of Tenants and Residents - Customer Satisfaction 
 

21 - 24

(D) 10.  Legionella Risk Assessments to Shops 
 

25 - 28

(D) 11.  Housing Service - Investment in Social Value 
 

29 - 32

FOR INFORMATION 

12.  Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance Expenditure 2019/20  33 - 34

13.  Performance Information Report  35 - 38

PART TWO 

(D) 14.  Next Place Limited: Service Level Agreement 2019/20 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART ONE 
OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AND 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006
 

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM MEMBERS

Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman)
Barlow
Blezard
Brook
Burley
Gawne
W. McClure
McEwan
Robson



Tenant Reps: Mandy Anderson
James Christie
Allan McIntosh

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Friday 30th August, 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Thursday 13th June, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Barlow, Blezard, Brook, Burley, 
McEwan and Robson.

Tenant Representatives:- Mrs M. Anderson and Mr A. McIntosh.

Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), Rebecca Halton 
(Business Support Manager) and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - 
Member Support). 

1 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006 – Urgent Item

RESOLVED:- That by reason of the special circumstances outlined below the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the following item of business not specified on the 
agenda should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency in accordance 
with Section 100(B)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Item Reason

Schedule of Rates Price Increase There had been a delay in                 
(Minute No. 6) negotiations between Hughes                      

Brothers and the Housing                   
Maintenance Department.

2 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 14th March, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

3 – Appointments of Representatives to Working Groups etc.

The Assistant Director - Housing reported that at the Annual Council meeting on 20th 
May, 2019 the allocation of seats in respect of Forums, Panels, Working Groups etc. 
had been agreed.

The Housing Management Forum had been requested to nominate Members and 
Tenant Representatives to the Tenant Scrutiny Working Group and the Tenants’ 
Complaints Panel for 2019/2020 in accordance with the proportionality indicated in 
the report.

RECOMMENDED:- That the membership for 2019/2020 be agreed as follows:-

Tenant Scrutiny Working Group

Council Representatives (2:1) – Councillors Barlow, Burley and McEwan.
Tenant Representatives – Mrs M. Anderson, Mr J. Christie and Mr A. McIntosh.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Tenants’ Complaints Panel

Council Representative (1:0) – Councillor Hamilton.
Tenant Representatives – Mrs M. Anderson and Mr A. McIntosh.

4 – Housing Management Performance Report 2018/19

The Business Support Manager submitted a report presenting the end of year 
performance information and provided a brief commentary to assist Members in their 
understanding of the key trends and the actions which would follow.  The end of year 
performance information for 2018/19 had been included in an appendix to the report.

It had been noted that in October 2017, the Housing Service had gone live with Cx, a 
new housing management system. In doing so, the Service had been able to access 
and run a suite of standard reports written by Civica that output the information held 
in Cx. 

The Business Support Manager advised that in looking at the output of the reports in 
more detail and carrying out significant validation work since the implementation of 
Cx, it had become clear that their integrity could not be relied upon. This was the 
result of the data source the reports used (the cube).  This method relied on around 
seven key ‘fact’ tables that were repopulated each night which summed up basic 
information at period and month level.  When comparing this to data pulled directly 
from the Cx database, it was evident that the cube could not be relied upon and as 
such it had been necessary to create new reports that instead used the database as 
the source. 

Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy had been enlisted to create the reports that were 
needed.  There had been a need to prioritise the development of reports to ensure 
that those needed for financial reconciliation and Audit purposes were in place first.  
That had been successfully achieved and the Business Support Manager reported 
that the Housing Service were confident that the key checks and balances were now 
in place to satisfy Audit and also Finance.

It was noted that the Housing Service had not been able to create all of the 
performance reports required to provide a full set of performance information at year 
end. However, significant progress had been made and the year end performance 
that was available had been included as an appendix to the report.

It was noted that it would be a priority over the coming financial year to create the 
remaining performance reports.

2018/19 Priorities

The following priorities had been outlined for 2018/19:-

Identifying and supporting vulnerable Tenants, especially those claiming 
Universal Credit 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 The Housing Service continued to support vulnerable Tenants, identifying those 
who may be finding the transition to Universal Credit difficult and finding ways to 
assist them in providing/updating their information on their Tenant Journal and 
also helping them to set up bank accounts and payment options.

 There were currently 294 Tenants known to be claiming Universal Credit Housing 
Costs. That number would increase as more people become eligible to move over 
from legacy benefits. A process within Cx had been created to record Universal 
Credit information, which would allow reporting on such information and to target 
those who may be struggling. This would be rolled out within the next month.

 Housing Officers and the Money Management Advisor had helped a total of 801 
Tenants successfully apply for reduced water tariffs.  249 Tenants had been 
supported onto reduced tariffs in the last 12 months alone, which would be of 
huge benefit to those vulnerable Tenants on low incomes.

Reduce risk to HRA income by continuing to improve rent collection

 Current arrears figures remained similar to those for the 2017/18 financial year 
with only a slight increase seen of 0.8%. The current arrears had increased more 
significantly between 2016/17 and 2017/18 (20%), which had been expected 
given the challenges of Universal Credit and the sanctions applied to legacy 
benefits, as well as the benefit cap having been introduced around that time. 

 34.5% of Tenants now paid by direct debit.
 

 Evictions for arrears had decreased to 14 and the number of tenancy 
terminations (voids) had decreased compared to last year.

 The Service were trialling the use of mobile devices in the community by Housing 
Officers to enable them to have access to Cx whilst out visiting Tenants/Estates 
to check rent accounts and provide rent account information to Tenants. The 
devices also had access to the internet so could be used to help Tenants access 
their Journals and make payments online when they otherwise would not be able 
to. The benefits of this way of working were being monitored with a view to rolling 
it out more widely.

 The Service were looking to increase the payment options available to Tenants 
who wished to pay by direct debit to include weekly collections and collections on 
any day of the week.  That method of payment was more easily managed both in 
terms of ensuring the amounts being paid covered all the charges and also in 
terms of knowing where payments failed so that it could be addressed quickly.

Continue to develop the Cx system to help Officers work more effectively and 
enable a self-serve facility for those Tenants wishing to access the service 
outside of normal office hours

 Cx had been live since October 2017.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 The Service were now in a much more stable position with Cx and Housing Staff 
were able to use the system with more confidence and were finding the system 
easier to navigate.

 Upgrades had taken place since the initial ‘Go Live’, which had addressed a 
number of outstanding issues. 

 Work continued with Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy to improve Cx particularly 
around the current and former arrears policies that were embedded within the 
Income & Debt Recovery Team to ensure that the system was able to assist the 
Officers in monitoring accounts and taking the necessary actions as a result.

 Various other projects were being looked at within Cx that would streamline some 
processes to make them more efficient and improve the way data is recorded.

 Tenant Portal, a self-serve facility for Tenants to access their information and 
report basic repairs, was nearing completion and would enhance the service 
Tenants receive.

 The Service continued to make progress on performance reporting within Cx and 
was mindful of the benefits of doing that in embedding new processes within Cx.

Voids & Empty Properties

 It had not been possible to report on rent loss due to empty properties (voids) at 
the moment due to the integrity of the reports designed to provide that information 
not being verified following validation work.  It was a priority for the coming 
financial year to work with Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy to create new reports 
that would allow reporting on such information knowing that the integrity of the 
reports was at the standard expected.

 Whilst the number of voids had decreased compared to last year, void turnover 
had been slower with the average number of days a property was void having 
increased, which had been addressed by the Maintenance Manager and 
Assistant Director - Housing and a plan was now in place to improve that going 
forward into the next financial year.  

 The number of properties which were accepted on first offer had dropped by 10% 
since last year, which also impacted on the number of days a property remained 
void.  The reasons for refusals continued to be monitored and action taken where 
necessary.

 The highest turnover of properties had been in the Vulcan area (13.3%) with the 
lowest turnover being Devonshire Road area (0%) based on properties that had 
become available April 2018- March 2019.

 116 voids were one bed flats and was the property type with the highest turnover.

 Two thirds of all voids were flats; mostly on Ormsgill.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 The days taken to turn around voids (including the time spent undergoing major 
repairs) had risen again from 54 days to 61 days. 

Influences for 2019/20 

Rent Collection

 With a loss of 1% to rent income and more movement from Housing Benefit to 
Universal Credit, the Service continued to look at ways to manage the effects of 
that.

 Cx would enable easier and better long-term asset management planning.

 Mobile devices set up to enable remote working would assist Housing Officers in 
maximising the opportunities for Tenants to make payments and also ensured 
their Journals were up to date.

 Increased payment options with direct debits would provide a more effective way 
of collecting rent.

Business Planning

 Cx would provide opportunities for improved efficiency across the service and that 
was being considered as part of an ongoing project plan for Cx now that the 
system was fully operational.

Control of Maintenance Expenditure

 The emphasis would still be to reduce void turnaround times, improve routine 
maintenance services and to maintain the Decent Homes standard.

RTB

 Right to Buys (RTB) had tripled in 2016/17. However, the number of properties 
sold in 2017/18 dropped by a third compared to the previous year with no 
increase seen in sales for the 2018/19 financial year. General needs dwellings 
stood at 2,557.

Actions for 2019/20

Action 1: Continue to concentrate efforts in identifying and supporting vulnerable 
Tenants who are claiming Universal Credit. 

Action 2: Reduce risk to HRA income by continuing to improve rent collection. 

Action 3: Continue to develop the Cx system to help Officers work more 
effectively and introduce a self-serve facility for those Tenants wishing 
to access the service outside of normal office hours.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Action 4: Improve the monitoring of and management of void properties.  

Action 5: Maximise income by introducing more direct debit payment options to 
include weekly collections and collections any day of the week.

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To note the information contained in the report and appendix; and

2. To agree actions 1-5 within the report for 2019/20, as follows:-

(i) Continue to concentrate efforts in identifying and supporting vulnerable 
Tenants who are claiming Universal Credit;

(ii) Reduce risk to HRA income by continuing to improve rent collection;

(iii) Continue to develop the Cx system to help Officers work more effectively 
and introduce a self-serve facility for those Tenants wishing to access the 
service outside of normal office hours;

(iv) Improve the monitoring of and management of void properties; and

(v) Maximise income by introducing more direct debit payment options to 
include weekly collections and collections any day of the week.

5 – Cumbria Choice: Choice-Based Lettings Upgrade

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report providing an update and 
progress on Cumbria Choice-Based Lettings (CBL) software upgrade, governance 
and way forward for the future.

The following facts had been noted:-

 There were currently over 13,000 applications registered on Cumbria Choice 
across Cumbria.

 The number of applicants choosing to register online continued to grow, 
however the current software for CBL required updating to make this easier for 
applicants.

 A Partnership Agreement was in place which brought together all District 
Councils and the main registered providers who jointly oversee the delivery.  
This sets out the governance arrangements.

 Since the implementation of the Partnership, South Lakeland District Council 
had managed the budget for CBL, however, they had recently advised the 
Project Board they would like another Local Authority Partner to take this role 
over.  The Council’s Finance Department had agreed to take over management 
of the budget for the Partnership going forward from this financial year.

 South Lakeland District Council employed the CBL Manager - each of the 
Districts contributed to this post.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 The CBL Project Board met every two months supported by the Operations 
Group.

 CBL sits within Cumbria Housing Group framework.  The RP/LA (Registered 
Providers/Local Authority) Group is the lead for CBL in Cumbria.

 Cumbria Housing Partners had been commissioned and carried out a full review 
of the Civica contract and made recommendations to Project Board.  To avoid 
excessive risk and get the best possible service moving forward, Civica should 
be retained as the ICT supplier and work with them to get the strongest possible 
solution.

 Barrow Borough Council had taken the lead in the review of the Homeless 
Reduction Act (HRAct).  Guidance had been completed and included as an 
appendix to the CBL Policy to ensure the Partnership was compliant with the 
Act.

 The Partnership Agreement was due for review and in the future would contain 
a funding liability, opt-out arrangements and engagement requirements from 
each Partner.

 The system met the need for Data Protection legislation now and in the future.

 Partners shared the capital and revenue costs and procurement arrangements 
are reviewed.

 Joint funding had been secured to continue working with a specialist ICT 
consultant to deliver system improvements needed both in the short and long 
term. 

Next Steps

 Project Board had commissioned Solicitors to review the HRAct Guidance to 
ensure compliance with HRAct legislation.

 Civica were preparing Contracts for each of the Districts within the Cumbria 
Choice Partnership for the ‘contract change upgrade’. All Districts would be 
responsible for their share of the capital cost for the upgrade.

RECOMMENDED:-

1. To note the content of the report;

2. To agree the Contract change to upgrade the CBL IT system with Civica; and

3. To agree that the Assistant Director - Housing would make reasonable 
resources available from the HRA Budget 2019/2020 to contribute towards any 
cost to upgrade the existing system.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



6 – Schedule of Rates Price Increase

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report for the purpose of considering a 
2.4% increase on the schedule of rate items and preliminary costs contained within 
the 2015 Housing Maintenance Contract with Hughes Brothers.

She advised that on 11th June, 2015, Members had agreed to the appointment of 
Hughes Brothers to provide a range of maintenance and emergency out-of-hours 
services for Council Tenants.  The procurement had been facilitated by Procure Plus 
Holdings under OJEU (Official Journal of the European Union) procedures.

In November 2019, the contract would have been operational for a period of four 
years and, during that time, the initial costs provided by Hughes Brothers had 
remained unchanged.

Members had been advised that in November 2018, a request had been received 
from Hughes Brothers to uplift the Contract costs (Schedule of Rate items and 
Preliminary Costs) in line with inflation. 

The Assistant Director - Housing reported that following a review of the proposals by 
Procure Plus Holdings, a number of key cost increases had been identified, as 
follows:-

 Labour - From October 2017 directly employed staff from Hughes Brothers 
received a minimum cost of living pay increase of 2%, with the majority receiving 
significantly higher increases in order to stay in line with rates offered in the local 
market with average pay increases 2.86%

 Fuel - Diesel prices had increased 10% from May 2017 (mid point) initial three-
year contract £1.18 to £1.31 per litre (December 2018).

 Materials - Hughes Brothers had provided Procure Plus Holdings with details 
from a number of building supply merchants which gave an average price 
increase of 2.48% with some regularly used materials, such as copper, 
plaster/cement and electrical components increasing by as much as 15% 
between 2016/2017 and 2017/2018. 

RECOMMENDED:- To agree the 2.4% increase on the schedule of rate items and 
preliminary costs contained in the 2015 Housing Maintenance Contract (Hughes 
Brothers) in line with the evaluation and recommendations provided by Procure Plus 
Holdings.

The meeting closed at 2.26 p.m.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



  Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 9th September 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Management of Gas Servicing and Maintenance

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998 places a duty upon 
the Council to have all gas appliances in premises let by the Council checked 
by a Gas Safe registered Engineer within 12 months of the previous check. 

Officers confirm that the Council is presently fully compliant with this 
legislation but wish to advise Members that the current Contractor, Sure 
Group, utilises a software system (Vixen) that is outdated and provides limited 
reporting and limited visibility of “real time” information. 

Officers responsible for ensuring compliance with the gas regulations 
currently have limited scope to identify and correct any shortfalls in the quality 
of service provided by Sure Group. 

Recommendation: 

Members are asked to:

1. Agree the full introduction of the GasTag software programme from 1st 
April 2020 with an initial set up and review period agreed between 1st 
January 2020 and 31st March 2020;

2. Agree suspension of Section 11 of the Council’s Standing Orders on the 
grounds that the services required are of a specialised nature and, as 
such, there would be no genuine competition provided by a tendering 
exercise; and

3. Agree preliminary work to commence integration of the GasTag software 
with CX and other IT systems may commence in advance of the planned 
meeting of ‘Full Council’ on 21st January 2020.

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Report

On 11th June 2015, Members agreed to the appointment of Sure Group to 
carry out the delivery of each annual gas safety inspection.  Officers confirm 
that the Council is presently fully compliant with this legislation but wish to 
advise Members that Sure Group utilises a software system (Vixen) that is old 
and provides limited reporting and limited visibility of ‘real time’ information.  In 
view of this, Officers have reviewed the leading web-based software solution 
called GasTag to identify if it offers increased resilience with regard to 
ensuring compliance with the gas regulations. 

The GasTag software provides Officers with ‘real time’ access to information 
about every gas service or breakdown repair via an on screen ‘Dashboard’. 
Sure Group will, in turn, be able to use the GasTag software processes and 
procedures to deliver the works moving forward via a range of handheld 
devices such as mobile phones or tablets. 

GasTag – Cutting Edge Technology

GasTag records and updates details about all gas appliances, flue 
arrangements and associated gas supplies and controls on site, their 
operation, any leaks and who has worked on them so people know in real 
time that they have been properly inspected and serviced.  The mobile 
application ensures correct work is done at the right time by the right people 
and verifies the Engineer’s gas credentials via a direct link to the national Gas 
Safe Register. 

Before undertaking any gas work, each Engineer has to login to the 
application to validate their qualifications and competencies.  Completed gas 
jobs get uploaded onto the free mobile application that guides each Engineer 
through the relevant gas procedure and data fields. 

Once completed the job is automatically uploaded to a web based portal for 
real time monitoring so we know immediately about any changes or areas of 
gas safety concern. The software also provides Council Officers with 
electronic notifications (via an email link) where appliances are found to be 
“immediately dangerous” or “at risk of causing harm”.

It is envisaged that the new software will fine tune Sure Group’s existing gas 
servicing procedures and drive performance improvements and cost savings. 
Additional benefits include a ‘Tenant Area’ where Tenants can view gas- 
related information about their property as well as live data transfers between 
GasTag and the Council’s housing management system, Cx, allowing 
additional reporting and cost modelling over time. 

The GasTag software is specialised in its field and provides a number of 
unique features that make it impractical to seek estimates from more than one 
supplier. For example: 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



 The software is the only product that links to the national Gas Safe 
Register in real time to check and validate Engineer’s gas qualifications 
before commencing work.

 The software itself requires the property to be tagged and this, in 
conjunction with the check-in facility within the Application and with 
additional use of GeoLocation, prove beyond reasonable doubt that the 
Engineer attended the property at the time stated.

In view of this, Members are asked to agree to classify the appointment of 
GasTag as an “Exception” under Section 11 of the Council’s Contract 
Standing Orders on the grounds that the services required are of a 
specialised nature and, as such, there would be no genuine competition 
provided by a tendering exercise.

The GasTag contract has been designed to run for a five year period from 1st 
April 2020 and Officers seek Members’ agreement to undertake a three-
month lead-in period from 1st January 2020 to 31st March 2020 to iron out any 
problems associated with the set up and installation of the software.

The contract includes independent auditing by Morgan Lambert, from Year 2 
onwards to carry out a range of gas auditing functions. 

The cost to provide and maintain GasTag is £9.00 per property in Year 1 of 
the contract, increasing to £10.00 per property in years 2 to 5.  The current 
number of gas serviceable properties is 2583 (at £9 per property =  £23,247 in 
Year 1).  

The contract includes all set up and ongoing development costs, including 
integration with Cx housing software system. Officers wish to advise Members 
that the annual cost of the GasTag software can be funded from the Housing 
Revenue Account.

Members are further asked to agree that the preliminary work to commence 
integration of the GasTag software with Cx and other IT systems may 
commence in advance of the planned meeting of ‘Full Council’ on 21st 
January 2020.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has legal implications with regard to the Gas Safety 
(Installation and Use) Regulations 1998.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has implications with regard to the management of 
compliance and risks in line with the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) 
Regulations 1998.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has some financial implications for the Housing 
Revenue Account.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no additional health and safety implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



   Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 9th September 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Station View, Holker Street: Extra Care/Sheltered 
Accommodation

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to inform Members that Accent are proposing to 
change the Station View Scheme to 100% extra care accommodation 
following consultation with Residents. 

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to note the proposal Accent are making to increase extra 
care provision at Station View by 13 units in the Borough over the next few 
years. 

Report

In 2009 the site on which Station View is built was acquired and subsequently 
cleared by Barrow Borough Council.  The site was released to Accent to 
develop accommodation for older people within the Borough.

Station View consists of 41 units of accommodation in total: 28 extra care 
units (mix of low, medium and high care needs) and 13 units of sheltered 
accommodation. 

The extra care units are allocated based on need with Health & Social Care 
Directorate taking the lead.  The sheltered units are allocated through 
Cumbria Choice, the county-wide choice-based lettings scheme which Barrow 
Borough Council and Accent are Partners.

The development of Station View has been a successful addition to the 
provision of accommodation for the frail and elderly in the Borough.  The 
project is consistently 100% occupied with an active waiting list.

The development has, however, impacted on demand for existing sheltered 
accommodation/ground-floor accommodation as applicants aspire to live in 
Station View.  Consequently, there are applicants on the Cumbria Choice 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



waiting list with priority bandings due to medical conditions who are not 
bidding as they are waiting for a vacancy at Station View.

Over the last two years, an added issue has arisen with the mix of sheltered 
and extra care units due to the differing needs of the Residents.  Those 
Residents in the sheltered units display an intolerance to Residents in need of 
extra care when using the shared facilities, ie restaurant and communal area.  
This causes distress to Residents and requires intensive management 
intervention.  

Statistics published in Cumbria County Council’s strategy for provision for 
older people, predict that there will be a demand of 340 units of extra care 
accommodation within the Borough.   As stated previously, there are currently 
only 28 units in the Borough.

Accent are proposing, in view of the increasing demand for extra care units 
and the issues arising in a mixed scheme, to change Station View to 100% 
extra care, increasing the units from 28 to 41.

I am advised Accent will be carrying out consultation with Residents in the 
next month regarding the proposed change.  It is planned it will be phased 
over the next few years as tenancies of sheltered accommodation end.  The 
mixed community model will continue with split low, medium and high care 
needs receiving extra care in the 41 units. 

 (i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



Background Papers

Nil.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



   Part One  

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:    9th September 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title: Survey of Tenants and Residents (STAR) – Customer 
Satisfaction

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the Housing Service 
proposal to undertake a Tenants’ satisfaction survey to enable continued 
promotion of Tenant involvement and as a basis for action planning in respect 
of future service review and development.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to note and endorse the proposal to conduct a STAR 
customer satisfaction survey.

Report

Managers and Tenants’ Forum have discussed and agreed that the 
information obtained from the 2015 survey is now out of date and should not 
be relied upon for benchmarking performance or for service review and 
development.  It is agreed that a further STAR – Tenants’ satisfaction survey 
should be carried out to get an up to date view of how satisfied Tenants are 
with the services they receive.

As part of the budget for 2019/20, there are funds of £10,000 allocated to                                    
conduct the STAR Survey during 2019.  In line with Barrow Borough Council 
procurement purchasing procedure, two specific quotations will be obtained 
and evidenced. 

STAR can be summarised effectively as the following:

1. A flexible survey which can be conducted in-house or by commissioning 
an external market research company;

2. Has a number of core questions but users can also include any of the 
set optional questions or alternatively include their own specifically 
worded questions;

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



3. Can be conducted across the whole stock (census) or across a sample 
of the stock (sampling); 

4. Can be adapted to target different categories of Tenants and Residents, 
e.g. general needs, supported, older people, and leaseholders; and

5. Can be undertaken using a variety of methods such as postal, face to 
face, telephone, on-line.  Postal is suggested as the primary method with 
the option to compliment this using other methods. 

Purpose of the Survey

There are many things to be gained from undertaking the STAR survey which 
are summarised below:

1. Facilitates meaningful Tenant involvement;
2. Enables scrutiny of services and therefore assists with regulatory 

compliance in co-regulation;
3. Results can be used to benchmark performance against other housing 

providers;
4. Enables effective service review and development;
5. Assists in promoting value for money as trends in performance can be 

addressed earlier; and
6. It supports good practice throughout the housing sector.

Regulatory Requirements

There is no compulsory requirement to carry out Tenants’ satisfaction surveys 
but it is regarded as good practice to do so.  Surveys give opportunities to 
Tenants to be involved in the review and development of services.  In 
addition, surveys give tangible results which can be benchmarked against 
other housing providers and enable effective performance management. 

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) housing regulatory framework 
remains set around the principle of co-regulation, encouraging providers to 
undertake robust self-regulation which incorporates effective tenant 
involvement.   Since surveys conducted on a large scale are considered more 
representative and therefore more accurate than smaller surveys, STAR will 
be a useful tool in assisting the co-regulation process and helping with 
regulatory compliance.  

(i) Legal Implications

There is no legal requirement to conduct a Tenants’ satisfaction survey.  

However, Barrow Borough Council must comply with regulatory requirements 
which have been developed from the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and 
therefore have legislative effect.  Undertaking a survey of this nature will enable 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



both Tenants and the Housing Department to scrutinise services in a system of co-
regulation which will assist us in complying with the regulatory requirements.    

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

There will be a cost in undertaking the STAR Survey which has been budgeted for 
in the financial year 2019/20.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Research report: Customer Satisfaction Survey 2015. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



      Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:     9th September 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title: Legionella Risk Assessments to Shops

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the ongoing Legionella 
Risk Assessment process and the compliance of shops with regard to water 
management and water safety.
 
Recommendations: 

Members are asked to:

1. Note the progress made to date with regard to the Legionella Risk 
Assessments for shops and retrospectively agree to the decision taken by 
the Director of Resources to appointment a suitably qualified plumbing 
Contractor to undertake the “Essential” remedial works in advance of the 
this meeting; and

2. Endorse the approach that the Council meets the initial cost of remedial 
works to shops and where appropriate these costs are recovered from the 
Leaseholder during the rent review and lease negotiation process.

Report

The Housing Department presently manages 19 shop premises that are 
located on several housing estates in Dalton, Ormsgill, Walney and 
Newbarns. 

At your meeting on 18th January 2018, Members agreed a number of key 
compliance principles for shops that included fire safety, gas and electrical 
systems as well as water supply and water storage systems. 

The Council has a duty to inspect the existing water supply and water storage 
installation and equipment installed in shops to ensure it complies with 
BS8580:2010 (Quality – Risk Assessments for Legionella Control – Code of 
Practice) and ACoP L8 (The Control of Legionella Bacteria in Water 
Systems): 2013.

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



Legionella Risk Assessments

Officers wish to advise Members that following their meeting held on 18th 
January 2018, Officers appointed a suitably qualified Legionella specialist 
(Bio-Chemica) to conduct a detailed Legionella risk assessment of all shop 
premises. 

17 of the 19 risk assessment surveys were completed by Bio-Chemica in May 
2019.  The remaining two shops will be assessed in August 2019.  In general 
terms the risk assessment reports indicated the following areas of concern:

Matters of Evident Concern - Highest Priority 
• None Identified 

Matters are Critical - High Priority 
• Confirm management responsibilities 

Matters are Essential - Medium Priority
 

• Replace non-compliant flexi hoses 
• Remove identified dead legs
• Disconnect heating filling loop
• Replace damaged water storage tank
• Back flow prevention required where identified 
• Flushing regime for little used outlets 
• Inform tenants of legionella management 
• Launch a documentation system 

Matters are Important - Low Priority 
• None Identified

Summary

On 21st June, 2019 Bio-Chemica provided Officers with 17 of the 19 
Legionella risk assessments for shops with two categories of 
recommendations that required  action within one month and three months. 

With regard to the “Critical” concerns identified, Officers wrote to the 17 shop 
Leaseholders on 10th July 2019 to outline the “Management Responsibilities”. 
Officers will be conducting periodic visits to ensure the shops remain 
compliant.

Due to the urgency of the identified “Essential” works, Officers appointed a 
suitably qualified plumbing Contractor to complete the works within the three-
month timeframe.  Officers sought approval from the Director of Resources 
prior to the appointment of the plumbing Contractor, as by delaying the 

Page 26

Agenda Item 10



appointment until the next scheduled meeting of the Housing Management 
Forum – this meeting, would have resulted in a period of non-compliance.

Officers request Members’ retrospective approval to undertake this work in 
advance of this meeting and to agree that the cost of the remedial work is 
initially met by the Council and, where appropriate, recovered from the shop 
leaseholder during the rent review and lease negotiation process. 

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no significant legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has significant implications with regard water safety 
compliance within shop premises.

(iii) Financial Implications

Resources be identified and made available in the 2019/2020 HRA budget.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has significant implications with regard to safety of shop 
premises, customers and tenants/leaseholders living above the shops.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



   Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 9th September 2019

Reporting Officer:  Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Housing Service – Investment in Social Value

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to provide information to Members on the 
investment of social value which is being delivered through our maintenance 
arrangements. 

We now deliver the majority of our ongoing investment through a framework 
arrangement owned by Procure Plus Holdings (PPH).  It is a not-for-profit 
organisation and a fundamental requirement is to re-invest in social value 
initiatives in the area in which their customers operate. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to note this information and I will provide ongoing 
updates at appropriate times. 

Report

Since delivering our maintenance plan through PPH, efforts to invest in social 
value are continuing.  We pay a set percentage for using their framework, but 
as PPH is a not-for-profit organisation, any profits are re-invested based on 
the value of the maintenance delivered by us.

During the period of working with PPH, I have provided assistance to focus on 
organisations within the Borough who can assist with the process.  PPH’s 
target being to create employment opportunities focusing on Council estate 
areas.

As reported at Housing Management Forum in March, 2018 Re:vision, the 
charitable arm of PPH, have been working directly with Inspira based in 
Barrow.  Inspira were commissioned to support 10 people (known as 
outcomes) from Barrow Borough Council Housing communities into 
employment during 2018/19.

Page 29

Agenda Item 11



I have recently met with Re:vision for an update and to discuss social 
investment for 2019/20 and to provide assistance by suggesting they contact 
various organisations in Barrow who support local people in employment.  In 
2019/20:

 The amount Barrow Borough Council Maintenance Section is forecast to 
spend through PPH frameworks is £3,730,000 during the whole of the 
financial year.  (At 1st July, 2019, Barrow Borough Council has spent 
£875,884).  As such, Re:vision will be aiming for 12 outcomes to be 
supported during 2019/20.  

 There are currently six active trainees in Barrow:  Three at Hughes 
Brothers and three at Keith Wilsons (Electrical Contractor).  These are 
trainees that started in 2018 and will continue to receive support this 
financial year.  Since the new framework started on 1st April this year, one 
trainee has started at DLP Services.  It is projected that two additional new 
trainees with Hughes Brothers will be started before 31st March, 2020 as a 
result of the work Barrow Borough Council carry out through PPH 
frameworks.

In addition to the above framework opportunities, Re:vision have a Service 
Level Agreement with the local employment agency, Inspira, to work with 
them to deliver new employment opportunities.  Inspira still have two 
outcomes to deliver from last year’s project and realistically this financial year 
they will only be able to deliver an extra four outcomes.

PPH was recently awarded a 12-month Construction Skills Fund (CSF) 
awarded by the Department of Education and Construction Industry Training 
Board for the North West to deliver construction-related training to meet the 
skills gap in the construction sector.  Re:vision are hoping to work with Inspira 
and local construction Contractors to deliver further outcomes utilising this 
funding.  This initiative is complimentary to the PPH framework activity and is 
not classed as a framework outcome unless the job meets the quality 
threshold that Re:vision works to.

There are two ways PPH can work with Inspira using the CSF fund:

 PPH will provide a day’s ‘bolt on’ to Inspira’s current Construction Skills 
Certificate Scheme (CSCS) which they run which they broker outcomes 
for.  (These are opportunities directly secured by PPH with local 
employers).  This will result in those candidates receiving enhanced 
training and the employers having more choice in determining the pre-
entry training that would suit their business, thereby encouraging the 
employers to offer more vacancies.

 Re:vision will broker employment opportunities with Barrow employers and 
will run a CSCS course from Inspira with their candidates.  Inspira are next 
planning to run a CSCS course in August, so it is hoped the above two 
options can be combined. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 11



As you are aware, Barrow Borough Council Housing Service works in close 
partnership with Women’s Community Matters (WCM) and I facilitated a 
meeting with WCM and Re:vision.  As a consequence, Re:vision are now 
planning to work with WCM and link into their Building Better Opportunities 
Project.  This is a project which focuses in moving women one step closer to 
employment, education or training.  Re:vision intend designing a bespoke 
training course, primarily for women which will be an early intervention stage 
in raising awareness about roles within the construction sector.  The course 
will also provide an opportunity of a short-term placement (not compulsory to 
attend).  Re:vision are also in the process of sourcing training and design 
course material to run a week long introduction course into construction which 
will be less focused on employment, but with more emphasis on helping 
women feel more independent within the home, learning some DIY skills, 
have taster sessions in some trades and gain a better understanding of 
employment opportunities in the construction industry that might suit them.  It 
is hoped that from this course some women may realise they are interested in 
working in construction and Re:vision will arrange work placements 
appropriately.  It is envisaged this course will take place mid to late 
September, 2019 after the schools’ summer holidays.  

As you are aware, the PPH framework remains our preferred method of 
delivery for financial and ease of delivery on a day-to-days basis, however, 
the social value further supports this approach.  

I will update you further on the progress of social value as it becomes 
available. 

(i) Legal Implications

The Social Value arrangements are an integral element of customers of the 
framework. Should the Council decide not to support the arrangements then 
alternative arrangements for the delivery of our investment plans would be 
required.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The cost of the delivery of this arrangement is included in the fees for using the 
PPH framework.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 32

Agenda Item 11



D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\1\8\AI00001817$ylmxmc0x.xls Page 1

SCHEME PROCUREMENT
TYPE

AVAILABLE
BUDGET

EXPENDITURE
TO DATE

ESTIMATED
START DATE

ESTIMATED
COMPLETION

DATE
CONTRACTOR Leasholders

affected?

GREENGATE ESTATE RE-ROOFING WORKS Procure Plus Holdings £900,000 £ 14,978 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No

WINDOW & DOOR REPLACEMENTS
VARIOUS HOUSING AREAS Procure Plus Holdings £200,000 £ 135,618 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 RICHMOND

JOINERY No

WALNEY RENDER & DAMP PROOFING
WORKS Procure Plus Holdings £320,000 £ 6,488 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-ROOFING WORKS
(HOUSES) Procure Plus Holdings £217,500 £ - 1.9.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-ROOFING WORKS
(FLATS) Procure Plus Holdings £208,000 £ 53,315 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE LIGHTING Procure Plus Holdings £40,000 £ - 1.11.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings £10,000 £ - 1.1.2020 31.3.2020 GEORGE JONES Yes

EWAN CLOSE REPLACMENT DOORS Procure Plus Holdings £96,000 £ - 1.10.2019 31.3.2020 SSS GROUP Yes

REWIRES Procure Plus Holdings £306,000 £ 126,000 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON No

HEATING Procure Plus Holdings £420,000 £ 263,000 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 AFM GAS Ltd No

PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings £180,000 £ - 17.8.2019 31.3.2020 G JONES Yes

HOUSING MAINTENANCE COMMITMENTS 2019-2020

Funding Available EXPENDITURE
TO DATE

Weekly
Available

Gross Comm. as a % funds
available

Tenant Demand Repairs £ 1,241,357 £ 353,710 £ 23,872 28%

Voids £ 538,997 £ 227,226 £ 10,365 42%

Gas Servicing £ 311,572 £ 121,626 £ 5,992 39%

Decoration Vouchers £ 30,000 £ 5,307 £ 577 18%

Environmental Impmts £ 5,000 £ 318 £ 96 6%

Disabled Adaptations £ 100,000 £ 32,965 £ 1,923 33%

Electrical Testing £ 61,000 £ 36,862 £ 1,173 60%

Door Entry Maintenance £ 19,176 £ 13,326 £ 369 69%
Gas - Building/Replacement £75,000.00 £12,905.00

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

 

Arrears & Collection- Dwellings (exc. Dispersed) Actual 
2017/18

Apr-Mar 
2018/19

Apr-June       
2019/20

Apr-
Sept 

2019/20

Apr-Dec 
2019/20

Apr-
Mar 

2019/20
£ Rent & Service Charges due (Excluding empty properties) £10,913,680 £10,638,866 £2,658,733    

£ Rent loss due to empty dwellings (voids)   £47,423.82    

£ Rent collected from Current Tenants       

£ Rent collected from Former Tenants       

Total Rent collected as % of rent due       

£ Current Arrears £473,551 £477,382 £526,760    

£ Former Arrears £300,205 £279,954 £306,171    

£ Write Offs (Gross) £71,297 £142,675 £0    

No. tenants evicted for rent arrears 19 14 2    

£ Rent Arrears UC claimants       

Arrears & Collection - Other Properties       

£ Rent arrears Dispersed  (Homeless) £2,586 £2,381 £2,091    

£ Rent arrears Garages £7,789 £3,860 £5,686    

£ Rent Arrears Shops £6,337 £3,565 £8,099    

£ rent loss due to empty Dispersed (Homeless)       

£ rent loss due to empty Garages       

£ rent loss due to empty Shops   £0    

Voids & Lettings (General Needs)       

Total Dwellings 2579 2557 2555    

Total number of re-lets 255 207 60    

%  of re-lets accepted on first offer 63.1% 57.4% 58.3%    

Number of re-lets that underwent Major Works 84 73 19    

Average relet time in days (Standard) 44 52 54    

Average re-let time in days (Major Works) 74 76 113    

Average re-let time in days (all re-lets) 54 61 65    

Number of units vacant and available for letting at 
period end 

7 5 9    

Number of units vacant but unavailable for letting at 
period end 

28 43 38    

No.Tenancies terminated 189 223 55    

Dwelling void at end of reporting period  48 46    

Tenancy Turnover % 7.3% 8.7% 2.2%    

ASB       

Number of new anti-social behaviour cases reported       

Number of closed successfully resolved ASB cases       

Number of closed unresolved anti-social behaviour cases       

Repairs & Maintenance       

Average number of calendar days taken to complete repairs       

Percentage of repairs completed at first visit       

% all responsive repairs completed on time       

Number Repair Orders completed       

Average Responsive repairs per property       
Appointments kept as a percentage of appointments made 

      

Page 35

Agenda Item 13



Major Works & Cyclical Maintenance Actual
2017/18

Apr-Marc
2018/19

Apr-June
2019/20    

Percentage of dwellings with  a gas safety certificate renewed 
by anniversary  100% 100%    

Percentage of homes that fail to meet the Decent Homes 
Standard   0%    

*Average SAP rating of dwellings at end of year (based on RD 
SAP 9.83)       

Homelessness FROM APRIL 2018       

Average days in temporary (dispersed) accommodation 58.8 61 61    

Average days in B&B accommodation 5.81 6.6 18    

Number of triage assessments 528 137    

Number of Homeless Prevention cases opened 146 29    

Number of Homeless Relief cases opened 142 45    

Number that failed to attend appointments 73 27    

Number of Successful Prevention cases 95 26    

Number of Successful Relief cases 77 40    

Number cases closed without successful outcome 34 20    
Number of decisions made that main housing duty is not 
owed 16 4    

Number owed the main housing duty (final duty)

Unable to 
provide 

until 
2018/19

6 0    

Employees       

Average permanent employee headcount 43 50 49    

Number of leavers 9 6 0    

Ave. working days lost / sickness absence 11.3 14.1 21.3    

Customer Complaints       

The number of Stage 1 complaints upheld in the year 3 5 awaiting info    

Water Charge Collection       

Total number of direct debit payers       

Number of rent agreements where a water support tariff or 
help to pay scheme is in place 552 801 875    

Housing Register       

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of applications that 
are Active or Under Review Active for the period shown 1127 1419 1430    

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of new applications 
submitted in the period shown 865 835 210    

Housing Stock       

Houses 1205 1188 1185    

Flats 1218 1213 1214    

Bungalows 156 156 156    

General Needs Dwellings 2579 2557 2555    

Dispersed 13 17 18    

Homeless (Cold Weather Provision) 0 0 0    

New Lives Project 2 2 0    

Adelphi Court 12 12 12    

Total Dwelling Stock 2606 2588 2585    

Community Centres 5 4 4    

Leaseholds 215 219 219    

Garages 504 504 504    

Shops 19 19 19    

TOTAL PROPERTIES 3349 3334 3331    

Page 36

Agenda Item 13



RTB & Land Values       

£ Houses £779,460 £741,265 £164,980    

£ Flats £47,700 £88,000 £0    

£ Bungalows £0 £0 £0    

£ Land £0 £0 £0    

TOTAL £827,160 £829,265 £164,980    

Sold 2018/19 Sold YTD

17 3

4 0

0 0

0 0

Page 37

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Management of Gas Servicing and Maintenance
	8 Station View, Holker Street: Extra Care/Sheltered Accommodation
	9 Survey of Tenants and Residents - Customer Satisfaction
	10 Legionella Risk Assessments to Shops
	11 Housing Service - Investment in Social Value
	12 Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance Expenditure 2019/20
	13 Performance Information Report

